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Dear Sir, 

We wish to inform you that the 43 Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to 

be held on Thursday, September 28, 2023 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the 

Company situated at G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141 120, Punjab. 

Pursuant to Regulation 30 and other applicable provisions, if any of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find herewith enclosed 

copy of Notice of the 43 Annual General Meeting of the Company along with the Annual 

Report of the Company for the financial year ended 315t March, 2023. 

This is for your information and record please. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

For Vallabh Steels Limited 

KOMAL BHALLA 

Komal Bhalla 

Company Secretary 

Encl: a/a
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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 43rdAnnual General Meeting of the members of Vallabh Steels Limited will be held at 

Registered Office of the company at G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana on Thursday, the 28th September, 2023 at 

10.00 A.M. to transact the following business:- 

 

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

1.   ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Audited Financial Statements of 

the Company for the financial year ended on that date and the Reports of Auditors and Board of Directors thereon. 

 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF MR. KAPIL KUMAR JAINAS A DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION: 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain (DIN: 00755228), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. 

 

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 

MARCH 31, 2024 AND IN THIS REGARD TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT 

MODIFICATION(S), IF ANY, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the consent of the Company be and 

is hereby accorded to appointment of M/s. Jatin Singal & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors 

of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 on such remuneration as may be mutually decided by the Board and the 

Secretarial Auditors plus taxes and actual out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with aforesaid audit. 

 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and 

take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 

 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                     Sd/- 

PLACE : LUDHIANA                                                                (KOMAL BHALLA) 

DATED: 02.09.2023                                                                     COMPANY SECRETARY 
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NOTES: 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating 

toSpecialBusinessatthemeetingisannexedherewithandformspartofthisnotice.  

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED 

TOAPPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE 

PROXYNEED NOT TO BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, 

DULYCOMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED, MUST BE DELIVERED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF 

THECOMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE MEETING. THE BLANK 

PROXYFORMISENCLOSED. 

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF THE MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND 

HOLDINGIN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 

COMPANYCARRYINGVOTINGRIGHTS.AMEMBERHOLDINGMORETHANTENPERCENTOFTHETOTALSH

ARE 

CAPITALOFTHECOMPANYCARRYINGVOTINGRIGHTSMAYAPPOINTASINGLEPERSONASPROXYANDS

UCHPERSONSHALLNOTACTASAPROXYFORANYOTHERPERSONORSHAREHOLDER. 

 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the Annual General 

Meeting,pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send to the Company, a certified 

copy of 

theBoardResolutiontogetherwiththerespectivespecimensignature(s)ofthoserepresentative(s)authorizedunderthe

saidresolutiontoattendandvoteontheirbehalfattheMeeting.  

4. Members, Proxies and Authorised representatives are requested to bring to the meeting, the attendance 

slipsenclosed herewith duly completed and signed mentioning therein details of their DP Id and Client ID/Folio No. 

(as thecasemaybe). 

5. Membersholdingsharesinphysicalmodearerequestedtonotifythechangeintheiraddress,ifany,attheearliesttothe 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the company. However, members holding shares in electronic mode 

maynotifythechangeintheiraddress,ifany,totheirrespectiveDepositoryParticipants(DPs). 

6. AsAmendedbySEBI(ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequirements)(FourthAmendment)Regulations,2018dated 

June 08, 2018 members holding shares in physical form are mandatorily required to dematerialize 

theirholdinginordertoeliminateallrisksassociatedwithphysicalshares.MemberscancontacttheCompanyorMasServ

icesLimitedforfurtherassistance.  

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide circular dated April 20, 2018 as modified by circular 

datedJuly16,2018hasmandatedthesubmissionofPermanentAccountNumber(PAN)andBankAccountdetailsby eve

ry participant in securities market. Members of the company holding shares in physical form can submit their 

PANandBankAccountdetailstotheCompany/RegistrarandShareTransferAgent(RTA). 

8. As per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021, and 
clarification vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021 issued by 
SEBI. SEBI vide these Circulars have mandated the furnishing of PAN of all the holders, Address with PIN code , 
Email address , Mobile No., Bank Account details of the first holder , Specimen Signature and Nomination by holders 
of physical securities, in case not recorded for the Folio(s), and that “From January 1, 2022, the RTAs shall not 
process any service requests or complaints received from the holder(s)/claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination 
documents/details are received”. Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to furnish the above details in respective 
Form ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and SH-14 which can be downloaded from the website of the company 
https://vallabhsteelsltd.in and from the website of the RTA https://masserv.com 

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, no amount is pending or lying unpaid 

orunclaimedforaperiodof7(Seven)yearstobetransferredtotheInvestorEducationandProtectionFund(IEPF)constitu

tedbyCentralGovernment. 
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10. MembersarerequestedtobringtheircopyofAnnualReportalongwiththemtotheAGM. 

11. A brief resume of Directors to be re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, disclosure of 
relationship between directors inter-se, names of Companies in which the person holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board and shareholding of non-executive directors as stipulated under Regulation 
36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given in explanatory statement 
and annexure to this notice. 

12. The Registers maintained under Section 170, 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by 

themembersattheAGM. 

13. The facility for voting through ballot or polling paper will also be available at the meeting and members attending 

themeetingwhohavenotalreadycasttheirvotebyremotee-

votingwillbeabletoexercisetheirrightatthemeeting.Themembers who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to 

the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall notbeentitledtocasttheirvoteagain. 

14. Members may also note that the Notice of the 43rdAGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 is 

alsoavailable on the Company's website at www.vallabhsteelsltd.in and on the website of the Stock Exchange 

i.ewww.bseindia.com 

15. Members may also note that the equity shares of the company have been included  in the list of securities 

forcompulsory trading in dematerialized form under ISIN No. INE457E01016. Shareholders are, therefore, advised 

todematerialize their shareholding to avoid inconvenience in future. After 31st March, 2019 the shares held in 

physicalform will not be transferred. They are requested to send their Dematerialisation Request Form (DRF) through 

theirDepositoryParticipant(DP). 

VOTINGTHROUGHELECTRONICMEANS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2 0 of the 

Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations 

&DisclosureRequirements)Regulations2015(asamended),andtheCircularsissuedbytheMinistryofCorporate Affair

s dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting toits 

Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered intoan 

agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, 

astheauthorizedagency.Thefacilityofcastingvotesbyamemberusingremotee-

VotingsystemaswellasvenuevotingonthedateoftheAGMwillbeprovidedbyNSDL.  

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13, 2020, the Notice calling 

theAGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.vallabhsteelsltd.in. The Notice can also 

beaccessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice 

isalsoavailable onthe website ofNSDL(agency forproviding theRemote e-Voting facility)i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
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THEINSTRUCTIONSFORMEMBERSFORREMOTEE-VOTINGANDJOININGGENERALMEETINGAREASUNDER:- 

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, the 25th September, 20239:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, the 

27thSeptember,2023at5:00P.M.Theremotee-

votingmoduleshallbedisabledbyNSDLforvotingthereafter.TheMembers,whose names appear in the Register of Members 

/ Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 

21stSeptember,2023,maycasttheirvoteelectronically.Thevotingrightofshareholdersshallbeinproportiontotheirshareinthepai

d-upequitysharecapitaloftheCompanyasonthecut-offdate,being21stSeptember,2023. 

HowdoIvoteelectronicallyusingNSDLe-Votingsystem? 

ThewaytovoteelectronicallyonNSDLe-Votingsystemconsistsof"TwoSteps"whicharementionedbelow: 

Step1:AccesstoNSDLe-Votingsystem 

A) Loginmethodfore-VotingforIndividualshareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholdersholding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories andDepository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their 

demat accounts inordertoaccesse-Votingfacility.  

LoginmethodforIndividualshareholders holdingsecuritiesindematmode isgivenbelow: 
 

Typeofshareholders LoginMethod 

Individual 

Shareholdersholdingse

curitiesindematmodewith

NSDL 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e Services website 

ofNSDL.OpenwebbrowserbytypingthefollowingURL:https://eservices.nsdl.com/eitherona

PersonalComputeroronamobile.Oncethehomepageofe-Servicesislaunched,click on the 

"Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" which is available under "IDeAS"section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. Aftersuccessful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under 

e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

optionsavailableagainstcompanynameore-Votingserviceprovider-NSDLandyouwillbere-

directedtoNSDLe-Votingwebsiteforcastingyourvoteduringtheremotee-Votingperiod. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

athttps://eservices.nsdl.com.Select"RegisterOnlineforIDeAS"Portalorclickathttps://eservi

ces.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL:https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

thehome page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is 

availableunder 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter yourUser ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), 

Password/OTPandaVerificationCodeasshownonthescreen.Aftersuccessfulauthentication

,youwillbe redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

optionsavailable against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you 

will beredirectedtoe-VotingwebsiteofNSDLforcastingyourvoteduringtheremotee-

Votingperiod. 

Individual 

Shareholdersholdingse

curitiesindematmodewith

CDSL 

1. ExistinguserswhohaveoptedforEasi/Easiest,theycanloginthroughtheiruseridandpasswor

d. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 

furtherauthe nt ic ation.TheURLforus ers tolog in toEasi /Eas ies tarehttps://web.cdslin

dia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on NewSystemMyeasi.  

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu.The 

Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast yourvote. 

3. IftheuserisnotregisteredforEasi/Easiest,optiontoregisterisavailableathttps://web.cdslindia

.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 

AccountNumber and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system 

willauthenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 

thedemat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for 

therespectiveESPi.e.NSDLwherethee-Votingisinprogress. 

  4 
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Importantnote:MemberswhoareunabletoretrieveUserID/PasswordareadvisedtouseForgetUserIDandForgetPasswordoptio

navailableatabovementionedwebsite. 

HelpdeskforIndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmodeforanytechnicalissuesrelatedtologinthroughDe

positoryi.e.NSDLandCDSL. 
 

Logintype Helpdeskdetails 

IndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesinde

matmodewithNSDL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdeskby sending a request atevoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 

no.: 18001020990and1800224430 

IndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesin

dematmodewithCDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdeskby sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 

contact at022-23058738or022-23058542-43 

 
B) LoginMethodforshareholdersotherthanIndividualshareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmodeandshareh

oldersholdingsecuritiesinphysicalmode.  

HowtoLog-intoNSDLe-Votingwebsite? 

1. Visitthee-

VotingwebsiteofNSDL.OpenwebbrowserbytypingthefollowingURL:https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eitheronaPerso

nalComputeroronamobile. 

2. Oncethehomepageofe-

Votingsystemislaunched,clickontheicon"Login"whichisavailableunder‘Shareholder/Member'section.  

3. Anewscreenwillopen.YouwillhavetoenteryourUserID,yourPassword/OTPandaVerificationCodeasshownonthescreen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 

withyour existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click one-

VotingandyoucanproceedtoStep2i.e.Castyourvoteelectronically.  

4. YourUserIDdetailsaregivenbelow: 
 

Mannerofholdingsharesi.e.Demat(NSDLor
CDSL)orPhysical 

YourUserIDis: 

a)ForMemberswhoholdsharesindemataccou
ntwithNSDL. 

8CharacterDPIDfollowedby8DigitClientIDForexampleifyour 
DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your 
userIDisIN300***12******. 

b)ForMemberswhoholdsharesindemataccou
ntwithCDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your Beneficiary ID 
is12**************thenyouruserIDis12************** 

c)ForMembersholdingsharesinPhysicalForm. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 

thecompany For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is125611thenuserIDis125611001*** 

 

5. PassworddetailsforshareholdersotherthanIndividualshareholdersaregivenbelow: 

a) Ifyouarealreadyregisteredfore-Voting,thenyoucanuseyourexistingpasswordtologinandcastyourvote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' which 

wascommunicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and  

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

yourDepository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once login, 

youwill be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 

beredirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 

youcan see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against company name or e-

Votingservice provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 

forcastingyourvoteduringtheremotee-Votingperiod. 

Individual 

Shareholders(holding 

securities indem at  

m ode) loginthrough 

their 

depositoryparticipants 
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       thesystemwillforceyoutochangeyourpassword. 

c) Howtoretrieveyour'initialpassword'? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' 

iscommunicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

theemailandopentheattachmenti.e.a.pdffile.Openthe.pdffile.Thepasswordtoopenthe.pdffileisyour8 digit 

client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held 

inphysicalform.The.pdffilecontainsyour'UserID'andyour'initialpassword'. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholderswhoseemailidsarenotregistered. 

6. Ifyouareunabletoretrieveorhavenotreceivedthe"Initialpassword"orhaveforgottenyourpassword:  

a) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL)optionavailableonwww.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) PhysicalUserResetPassword?"(Ifyouareholdingsharesinphysicalmode)optionavailableonwww.evoting.nsdl.c

om. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.inmentioningyourdemataccountnumber/folionumber,yourPAN,yournameandyourregisteredaddr

essetc. 

d) MemberscanalsousetheOTP(OneTimePassword)basedloginforcastingthevotesonthee-VotingsystemofNSDL. 

7. Afterenteringyourpassword,tickonAgreeto"TermsandConditions"byselectingonthecheckbox.  

8. Now,youwillhavetoclickon"Login"button. 

9. Afteryouclickonthe"Login"button,Homepageofe-Votingwillopen. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 

system.HowtocastyourvoteelectronicallyandjoinGeneralMeetingonNSDLe-

Votingsystem? 

1. AftersuccessfulloginatStep1,youwillbeabletoseeallthecompanies"EVEN"inwhichyouareholdingsharesandwhosevotin

gcycleandGeneralMeetingisinactivestatus. 

2. Select"EVEN"ofcompanyforwhichyouwishtocastyourvoteduringtheremotee-

VotingperiodandcastingyourvoteduringtheGeneralMeeting. 

3. Nowyouarereadyfore-VotingastheVotingpageopens. 

4. Castyourvotebyselectingappropriateoptionsi.e.assentordissent,verify/modifythenumberofsharesforwhichyouwishtoca

styourvoteandclickon"Submit"andalso"Confirm"whenprompted. 

5. Uponconfirmation,the message"Votecast successfully"will bedisplayed. 

6. Youcanalsotaketheprintoutofthevotescastbyyoubyclickingontheprintoptionontheconfirmationpage.  

7. Onceyouconfirmyourvoteontheresolution,youwillnotbeallowedtomodifyyourvote. 

GeneralGuidelinesforshareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPGFormat) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the 
dulyauthorizedsignatory(ies)whoareauthorizedtovote,totheScrutinizerbye-

mailtojatinsingal@gmail.comwithacopymarkedtoevoting@nsdl.co.in. 
2. Itisstronglyrecommendednottoshareyourpasswordwithanyotherpersonandtakeutmostcaretokeepyourpassword 

confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in 
thecorrectpassword.Insuchanevent,youwillneedtogothroughthe"ForgotUserDetails/Password?"or"PhysicalUser
ResetPassword?"optionavailableonwww.evoting.nsdl.comtoresetthepassword. 

3. Incaseofanyqueries,youmayrefertheFrequentlyAskedQuestions(FAQs)forShareholdersande-
votingusermanualforShareholdersavailableatthedownloadsectionofwww.evoting.nsdl.comorcallontollfreeno.:18
001020990and1800224430orsendarequesttoMr.AmitVishalatevoting@nsdl.co.in 

Processforthoseshareholderswhoseemailidsarenotregisteredwiththedepositoriesforprocuringuseridandpas
swordandregistrationofemailidsfore-votingfortheresolutionssetoutinthisnotice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please send signed request with Folio No., Name of 
shareholder,scanned copy of any one share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card),AADHAR(selfattestedscannedcopyofAadharCard)byemailtoinfo@masserv.com. 

 

2. Incasesharesareheldindematmode,pleaseupdateyouremailidwithyourdepository.IfyouareanIndividualshareholde

rsholdingsecuritiesindematmode,youarerequestedtorefertotheloginmethodexplainedatstep1(A) 
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i.e.Loginmethodfore-VotingforIndividualshareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmode. 

3. Alternativelyshareholder/membersmaysendarequesttoevoting@nsdl.co.inforprocuringuseridandpasswordfore-

votingbyprovidingabovementioneddocuments. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individualshareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained 

withDepositoriesandDepositoryParticipants.ShareholdersarerequiredtoupdatetheirmobilenumberandemailIDcor

rectlyintheirdemataccountinordertoaccesse-Votingfacility. 

THEINSTRUCTIONSFORMEMBERSFORe-VOTINGONTHEDAYOFTHEAGMAREASUNDER:- 

1. Theprocedurefore-VotingonthedayoftheAGMissameastheinstructionsmentionedaboveforremotee-voting. 

2. OnlythoseMembers/shareholdershavenotcastedtheirvoteontheResolutionsthroughremotee-

Votingandareotherwisenotbarredfromdoingso,shallbeeligibletovoteintheAGM.  

3. MemberswhohavevotedthroughRemotee-

VotingwillbeeligibletoattendtheAGM.However,theywillnotbeeligibletovoteattheAGM.  

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 

dayoftheAGMshallbethesamepersonmentionedforRemotee-voting. 

 

BYORDEROFTHEBOARDOFDIRECTORS 
VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 

 

 

      PLACE:LUDHIANA                                                                                                                                        Sd/- 

DATED:02.09.2023 (KOMALBHALLA) 

COMPANYSECRETARY 
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ANNEXURE      \\ 

EXPLANATORYSTATEMENTOFMATERIALFACTSPURSUANTTOSECTION102OFTHECOMPANIES ACT, 

2013CONCERNINGITEMNO.3 (ASPARTOFNOTICE): 

FORITEMNO.3 

TheBoard,ontherecommendationoftheAuditCommittee,hasapprovedtheappointmentandremunerationofM/s.Jatin 

Singal & 

Associates,CompanySecretariesasSecretarialAuditorstoconducttheauditoftheCompanyforthefinancialyear 2023-

24pursuanttotheprovisionsofSection204oftheActreadwithrule9oftheCompanies(AppointmentandRemunerationofMa

nagerialPersonnel)Rules,2014. 

 

Accordingly, the Board recommended and seeks consent of the members for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set 

outatItemNo.3oftheNoticeforappointmentoftheSecretarialAuditorsforthefinancialyearendingMarch31,2024. 

 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned 

orinterested,financiallyorotherwise,intheresolutionsetoutatItemNo.3oftheNotice. 

 

BYORDEROFTHEBOARDOFDIRECTORS 
VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 

 

 

PLACE:LUDHIANA                                                                                                                                          Sd/- 

DATED:02.09.2023 (KOMALBHALLA) 

COMPANYSECRETARY 
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ANNEXURETOTHENOTICE 
DETAILSOFDIRECTORSSEEKINGRE-APPOINTMENTATTHEFORTHCOMINGANNUALGENERALMEETING 

 

[PursuanttoRegulation36(3)oftheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequireme

nts)Regulations,2015] 
 

Name of Director Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain 

Date of Birth and Age 12.08.1950, 73 Years 

Qualification and Experience Graduate, 49 Years 

Date of Appointment on the Board 15.03.1992 

Nature of his expertise in specific functional 
areas 

Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain has vast experience in 

Business Management 

Names of the listed entities in which the person 
also holds the Directorship 

None 

The membership of the committees of the board 
of Listed Entities 

None 

Disclosure of Relationship between Directors Not Related to any Director/ Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Director NA 

Shareholding in the Company 

as on March 31st, 2023 

2,32,000  
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DIRECTORS'REPORT 

To 

The Members, 

VallabhSteelsLimited 

Wehavepleasureinpresentingthe43rdAnnualReportoftheCompanyalongwiththeAuditedStatementofAccountsfortheyearen

ded31stMarch,2023: 

 

FINANCIALRESULTS: 

(RupeesinLakhs) 

 CurrentYear  PreviousYear 
RevenuefromOperationsandOtherIncome  0.61 

 

 94.22 

ProfitbeforeInterest,Depreciation, Finance Cost 
and Tax 

 (854.21)  (738.90) 

Less:     

FinancialCosts -  1.14  

ProvisionforDepreciation 157.65  192.44  

Taxes:CurrentTax --  --  

MATCreditEntitlement --  --  

DeferredTax/Earlieryeartaxadjustment (5.35) 152.30 (8.64) 184.94 

ProfitafterTax  (1006.51)  (923.84) 

PERFORMANCEREVIEW: 

Duringtheyearunderreview,theCompanyhasrecordedafallinrevenueoperationswhichareplacedatRs.0.61lakhs as 

compared to Rs. 94.22 in the previous year. This has been primarily due to shortage of workingcapital. 

As a result the Company has registered a loss of Rs. 1006.51 lakhs as compared toRs.923.84lakhs in the previousyear. 

ThemanagementoftheCompanyisseizedofthematterandtakingalloutstepstofacethevariouschallenges. 

INDUSTRYANDECONOMICSCENARIO: 

India is third largest producer of steel in the world after China and Japan. Steel demand in India is expected to grow 

in2023-24 basedonexpectedgrowthindifferentsectors. 

EVENTSSUBSEQUENTTOTHEDATEOFFINANCIALSTATEMENTS: 

Presently also the Company is facing the shortage of working capital facilities resulting in adversely affecting the 

BankborrowingsandthusperformanceoftheCompany. 

CHANGEINTHENATUREOFBUSINESS,IFANY: 

Duringtheyearunderreview,therearenochangesinthenatureofthebusinessoftheCompany. 

SHARECAPITAL: 

TheCompany'spaidupequitysharecapitalasatMarch31,2023stoodatRs.4,95,00,000/-

comprisingof49,50,000equitysharesofRs.10/-

each.Duringtheyearunderreview,theCompanyhasnotissuedanyfreshshares. 

EXPORTS: 

Despitealleffortsmade,thecompanycouldnotregisteranyexportsduringtheyearunderreport. 

DIVIDENDANDRESERVES: 

KeepinginviewthelosssufferedbytheCompany,theBoardofDirectorshasnotrecommendedanydividend. 

LISTINGOFSHARES: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai. 

TheCompanyhasnotpaidthelistingfeetoBSELimited,MumbaifortheFinancialYear2022-23. 

PUBLICDEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public during the year within the ambit of Section 73 of 

theCompaniesAct,2013andCompanies(AcceptanceofDeposits)Rules,2014. 

DIRECTORSANDKEYMANAGERIALPERSONNEL(KMP): 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles 
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ofAssociation, Sh. Kapil Kumar Jain, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company (having DIN No. 

00755228),retiresbyrotationattheforthcomingAnnualGeneralMeetingoftheCompanyandbeingeligibleoffershim

selfforre-appointment.TheBoardofDirectorsrecommendshisRe-Appointment. 

The Independent Directors appointed on the Board of the Company have already submitted their declaration 

of Independence as prescribed both under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations  

 

andDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,2015. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are Mr. Kapil 

KumarJain, Managing Director, Mr. Ajit Kumar Jha as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mrs. Komal Bhalla 

as CompanySecretaryandComplianceOfficeroftheCompany. 
INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLS: 
YourCompanyhasanadequatesystemofinternalcontrolinplacewhichhasbeendesignedtoprovideareasonableassuran

ce with regard to maintenance of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, protecting assets 

fromunauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting as detailed 

inManagementDiscussionandAnalysis. 

POLICYONDIRECTORS'APPOINTMENTANDREMUNERATIONANDOTHERDETAILS: 

TheCompany has an appropriate combination Executive, Non- Executive Directors including Independent 

Directors to maintain independence of the Board. The Directors have expertise in the fields of industry operations, 

finance, legal and management.  

MEETINGS: 

A draft calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year 7 (Seven) 

BoardMeetings and 4 (four) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between two 

meetings was within the stipulated periodprescribedundertheCompaniesAct,2013.  

MANAGEMENTDISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS: 

YourDirectorsarepleasedtopresenttheManagement'sDiscussionandAnalysisofoperationsfortheyearendedMarch31,

2023attachedasAnnexure-IwhichformspartofthisAnnualReport. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

In view of the provisions of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 report on Corporate Governance 

is not prepared by the Company. The Company is in Compliance with the various requirements and disclosures. 

VIGILMECHANISM/WHISTLEBLOWERPOLICY: 

TheCompanyhasaVigilMechanismnamedFraudandRiskManagementPolicytodealwithinstancesoffraudandmisman

agement,ifany.InstayingtruetoourvaluesofStrength,PerformanceandPassionandinlinewithourvisionof being one of 

the respected companies in India, the Company is committed to the high standards of 

corporategovernanceandstakeholder'sresponsibility. 

TheCompanyhasestablishedaWhistleBlowerPolicyandthesamehasbeenuploadedontheCompany'swebsitewww.val

labhsteelsltd.inThesaidpolicyhasalsobeenmadeavailableattheoffices/manufacturingunitstoenabletheemployees to 

report their concerns, if any, directly to the Chairman of the Board and to the Chairman of the 

AuditCommittee.ThenewemployeesarealsogivendetailsofWhistleBlowerPolicyatthetimeofjoiningtheCompany.Ther

ewerenooccasionsduringtheyearunderreviewwhereanyconcernswerereportedunderthesaidpolicy. 

SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATECOMPANIES: 

TheCompanydoesnothaveanySubsidiary/AssociateCompanies. 

RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS: 

TherewerenosuchcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsenteredintoduringtheyearendedMarch31,2023asst

ated in Form AOC-2 attached as Annexure-II which forms integral part of this report. None of the 

IndependentDirectorshasanypecuniaryrelationshipsortransactionsvis-à-vistheCompany. 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and the Key 

ManagerialPersonnel or other designated Persons, Promoters, Directors, the management or the relatives 

except for thosedisclosedinthefinancialstatementswhichareatarm'slengthbasis.  
PERSONNELANDINDUSTRIALRELATIONS: 

TheManagement-Employeesrelationsremainedcordialthroughouttheyear. 

 

PARTICULARSOFEMPLOYEESANDRELATEDDISCLOSURES: 

TheCompanyhasnotemployedanyindividualwhoseremunerationfallswithinthepurviewofthelimitsprescribedunder 

the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 (2) and (3) of the  

11

http://www.vallabhsteelsltd.in/
http://www.vallabhsteelsltd.in/


2022-2023 

 

 

 

Companies(AppointmentandRemunerationofManagerialPersonnel)Rules,2014. 

DisclosurepertainingtoremunerationandotherdetailsasrequiredunderSection197(12)oftheActreadwithRule5(1)ofthe

Companies(AppointmentandRemunerationofManagerialPersonnel)Rules,2014areannexedheretomarkedasAnnex

ure-IIIandformspartofthisreport. 

CORPORATESOCIALRESPONSIBILITY(CSR)INITIATIVES: 

Corporate Social Responsibility was not applicable to the Company for the financial year under review. 

ThePhilosophyofthecompanyworkswithobjectivesofcontributingtothesustainabledevelopmentofthesocietyandtocre

ateagreenerandcleanerenvironmentaroundus. 

ANNUALRETURN: 

PursuanttotheprovisionsofSection92(3)oftheAct,theAnnualReturninformMGT-7,fortheFinancialYear2022-

23isuploadedonthewebsiteofthecompanyatwww.vallabhsteelsltd.in. 

AUDITORS&THEIRREPORTS: 
a) STATUTORYAUDITORS: 

The Shareholders approved the appointment of M/s K.R Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
Firm having Registration no.(030088N) and their office at Ludhiana,as Statutory Auditors of the Company on 
September 29, 2022 to hold office for 5(five)years. Their period ofoffice as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
will expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027.The Board on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee has proposed the re-appointmentofM/s K.R Aggarwal & Associates (Firm Registration 
No. 030088N) having their office at Ludhiana, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5(Five) 
consecutive years to hold the office from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in the year 2022 till 

the conclusion of 47th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2027. The Auditors have confirmed that they 
hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 
b) SECRETARIALAUDITORS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment 

andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. Jatin Singal & 

Associates,Company Secretaries in Practice (C.P. No. 11976) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for thefinancialyear2022-23. 

TheReportoftheSecretarialAuditcarriedoutforthefinancialyear2022-23isannexedtothisReportas 

Annexure-IV. 

Regarding registration of one independent director under the provisions of companies (Creation and Maintenance 

ofDataBankofIndependentDirectors)Rules,2019asamended. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain 

any other qualifications, reservations oradverseremarksandstatementsreferredinthe   Secretarial   Audit   

Report are self explanatory. 

The  Secretarial  Compliance Report  under Regulation 24A Of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure   
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 read with BSE Circular No, LIST/COMP/ 10/2019-20 dated 9th 
May, 2019 is not applicable to our Company as per exemption given under Regulation 15 (2) (a) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

   RISKMANAGEMENTCOMMITTEE: 

The Risk Management Committee of the Company is constituted under the chairmanship of Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain 

andothermembersbeingMr.ManojKumarandMr.SumanJain.NomeetingofCommitteewasheldduringthefinancialyear

2022-23. 

RISKMANAGEMENTPOLICY: 

TheRiskManagementPolicyisformulatedandimplementedbytheCompany.ThePolicyhelpstoidentifythevariouseleme

ntsofrisksfacedbytheCompany,whichinopinionoftheBoardthreatenstheexistenceoftheCompany.TheRisk 

Management Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company's website at the web 

linkwww.vallabhsteelsltd.in. 

PARTICULARSOFLOANS,GUARANTEESORINVESTMENTS: 

The Company has neither given/provided any Loans, Guarantees; nor it made any Investments covered under 

theprovisionsofSection186oftheCompaniesAct,2013. 

DETAILSOFSIGNIFICANTANDMATERIALORDERSPASSEDBYTHEREGULATORSORCOURTSORTRIBUNALS

: 

There have not been any significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which  
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wouldimpactthegoingconcernstatusoftheCompanyanditsfutureoperations. 

SECRETARIALSTANDARDS: 

TheCompanyhasdulyfollowedtheapplicableSecretarialStandardsissuedbyTheInstituteofCompanySecretariesofIndiaandt

heCompanyhasinplacepropersystemstoensurecompliancewithapplicableSecretarialStandards. 

GENERAL: 

Your Directorsstatethatnoreportingisrequiredin respectofthefollowingitemsastherewereno 
transactionsoftheseitemsduringtheyearunderreview: 

1. Issueofequityshareswithdifferentialrightsastodividend,votingorotherwise. 

2. Issueofshares(includingsweatequityshares)toemployeesoftheCompanyunderanyscheme. 

Further the company does not have a scheme for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for 

thebenefitofemployees. 

The Company has a zero-tolerance approach towards sexual- harassment at workplace. During the year 

underreview,therewerenocasesfiledpursuanttotheSexualHarassmentofWomenatWorkplace(Prevention,Prohibition

andRedressal)Act,2013. 

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The Company's 

policyrequires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety to all concerned compliances of 

environmentalregulationsandpreservationsofnaturalresources. 

TRANSFEROFAMOUNTSTOINVESTOREDUCATIONANDPROTECTIONFUND: 

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years and as such no 

fundswererequiredtobetransferredtoInvestorEducationandProtectionFund(IEPF). 

CONSERVATIONOFENERGY,TECHNOLOGYABSORPTIONANDFOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNINGSANDOUTGO: 

InformationinaccordancewiththeprovisionsofSection134(3)(m)oftheCompaniesAct,2013readwithRule8ofthe 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and 

foreignexchangeearningsandoutgoisgivenhereunder: 

I. CONSERVATIONOFENERGY: 

a) EnergyConservationmeasuretaken:TheCompanyensuresthatthemanufacturingoperationsareconductedinthe

mannerwherebyoptimumutilizationandsavingsofenergyisachieved. 

b) Additionalinvestmentsandproposals,ifany,beingimplementedforreductionofconsumptionofenergy:Nospecific

investmenthasbeenmade. 

c) Impactofthemeasuresat(a)and(b)aboveforreductionofenergyconsumptionandconsequentimpactonthecostof

production:Impactofmeasurestakenisnotquantitativeandassuchcannotbestatedaccurately. 

d) TotalEnergyconsumptionperunitofproductionasperform'A'totheRulesinrespectofindustriesspecifiedinschedul

ehereto: 

A. POWER&FUELCONSUMPTION 2022-23 2021-22 

a) Electricity–Purchased 

 TubeMill,ColdRolledMill 

 PurchasedUnits - 2,70,641 

 TotalAmount - 70,85,680 

 Rate/Unit(Rs.) - 26.18 

b) Electricity-OwnGeneration 

 ThroughDieselGenerator - 8,750 

 Unitperliterofdieseloil - 3.50 

 Cost/Unit(Rs.) - 25.00 

c) FurnaceOil 

 Quantity(Ltrs.) - 1,999 

 TotalCost - 1,20,620 

 AverageRate(Rs.) - 60.31 

B. CONSUMPTIONPERUNITOFPRODUCTION 

 TubeMill,ColdRolledMillElectricityPerMT - 38,405 

II. R&DANDTECHNOLOGYABSORPTION: 

YourCompanyhasalwaysbeenmakingbesteffortstowardstechnologyabsorption,adaptationandinnovationtoimpro 
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ve the quality of its products being manufactured at its various units and to reduce the cost of 

production.Duringtheyearunderreview,theCompanyhasnotprocuredimportedtechnology. 

 

III. FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNINGSANDOUTGO: 

a) Activitiesrelatingtoexportinitiativesforexportofitsproducts: 

Duringtheyearunderreview,variousindigenousandinternationalfactorscauseddisappointmentinexports. 

Despitealltheeffortsmade,thecompanydidnotregisteranyexportsduring2022-23. 

(Amt.inLakh) 

b) TotalForeignExchangeusedandearned 2022-23 2021-22 

Foreign Exchange Used (CIFValue of Imports) Nil Nil 

ForeignEarnings(FOBvalueofExports) Nil                              Nil 

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT: 

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, 

yourdirectors make the following statements in terms of Section 134 (3) (c) and Section 134 (5) of the Companies 

Act,2013: 

i. ThatinthepreparationoftheannualaccountsfortheyearendedMarch31,2023,theapplicableaccountingstanda

rdshavebeenfollowedalongwithproperexplanationrelatingtomaterialdepartures,ifany; 

ii. That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

andestimatesthatarereasonableandprudentsoastogiveatrueandfairviewofthestateofaffairsoftheCompanyasatMa

rch31,2023andtheprofitorlossoftheCompanyfortheyearendedonthatdate; 

iii. That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

inaccordancewiththeprovisionsoftheCompaniesAct,2013forsafeguardingtheassetsoftheCompanyandforpreventi

nganddetectingfraudandotherirregularities; 

iv. Thattheyhadpreparedtheannualaccountsforthefinancialyearendedon31stMarch,2023onagoingconcernbasis; 

v. Thatthedirectorshadlaiddowninternalfinancialcontrolstobefollowedbythecompanyandthatsuchinternalfinancialco

ntrolsareadequateandwereoperatingeffectively;and 

vi. Thatthedirectorshaddevisedpropersystemtoensurecompliancewiththeprovisionsofallapplicablelawsandthatsuch

systemwereadequateandoperatingeffectively. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

YourDirectorstakethisopportunitytoexpresstheirsincerethanksandappreciationtotheteamofexecutives,staffmembers

andworkersatalllevelsfortheirco-operation,hardwork,dedicationanddevotion.Ourthanksarealsodueto the Bankers, 

Government Authorities and Business constituents for their continued support and co-

operationextendedfromtimetotimetotheCompany. 
 

BYORDEROFTHEBOARDOFDIRECTORS 

                        VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 

 
 

Sd/- 

PLACE:LUDHIANA (KAPILKUMARJAIN) 

DATED :02.09.2023                                                                                     CHAIRMAN &MANAGING DIRECTOR 

  DIN:00755228 

14



2022-2023 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-ITOTHEDIRECTORS’REPORTMANAGEMENTDISCUSSIONANDANALYSISREPORT 

(a)IndustryStructureandDevelopment: 

The management of Vallabh Steels Limited presents its analysis report covering performance and outlook of 
theCompany.TheIndianSteelIndustryremainsoneofthemostcompetitivesteelindustriesintheworld.However,thereisan
eedtocreateafairlevelplayingfieldamidstsupplyglutcausedbysurpluscapacitiesinsteelsurpluscountries.India has 
emerged as one of the brightest spots in the world grappling with economic turbulence and fragile growth.Focus on 
infrastructurecreation, housing policy initiatives by the Government of India augers well for revival of growth in 
Steel demand inIndiaintheyearstocome. 
EventhoughtheSteelIndustryispoisedforhandsomegrowthbuttherearechallengesalsofortheglobaleconomywhich 
include increasing protectionism in various countries, increasing global debt. Besides there is also a 
bigchallengeincurrencyfluctuationsworldwideandU.S.Dollarvis-à-visIndianRupeefortheIndianEconomy. 
Steel demand in India is expected to grow in the years to come on the back of reform momentum in India. 

Theconstructionindustryisexpectedtorisefurtherduetogovernment'sthrustonhousingsector.Hence,itisexpectedthatd
omesticsteeldemandisgoingtoregisterhealthygrowthintheyearstocome. 

IndianEconomy: 
The introduction of Goods and Services Tax Act (GST) and Promulgation of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 
toimproveassetqualityofBanksandothereconomicmeasurestakenwillfurtherresultingrowthoftheeconomyandenhanc
e the ease of doing business in India. At the same time the spread of pandemic has adversely affected 
theIndianeconomy. 

Company'sPerformance: 

i) ProductPortfolio: 
YourCompanyismainlyengagedinthemanufacturingandmarketingofSteel coating 
productswhichfallwithinthesinglesegmentof"SteelIndustry." 

ii) Highlights:Thehighlightsofthefinancialyear2022-23havebeenasunder: 
Variousmeasureslaunchedduringtheyeartoimprovethequalityofcutendsinfinalproducts. 

TheCompanyhasbeenabletomeetitsrawmaterialrequirementwithoutcompromisingonqualityand 
productionschedules. 

c) Outlook:Opportunity,Threats,Risks&Concerns: 
The basic aim of the Company is to become capable to produce steel coating products from secondary 
producer to primary producer as per marketrequirements and thus be able to manage market trends to its 
advantage. Opportunities abound in growingeconomies and opening up of economy in India has created 
opportunities for Indian enterprise to move beyondnationalboundariesaswelltocreateproductiveassets. 

The Company is engaged in steel coating products. The outlook for the industry looks 
promising.IndianSteeldemanddidverywellshowinganupwardtrend,settingaroadaheadforthegrowthofthedomestic
steelindustryintheyearstocome. However on account of shortage of working capital the company’s 
performance began to nose dive. 

Competition in Steel Coating industry is escalating and technological changes will spur or drag the forward 
march ofindividual units in steel industry. Supply side could also be an issue in next few years because of 
increase 
inproductioncapacitybysteelindustryinIndiaandexpressionofinterestbyforeigncompaniestosetupnewsteelmaking 
units. The Company's thrust on improving productivity and reducing cost of production will, in such 
ascenario,helpinforgingaheadingloballycompetitiveenvironment.GlobaleconomicuncertaintieshaveaffectedIndia
's economy. Key risks synonymous to industry include the increase in financial charges, non-availability 
ofrawmaterials,suchasiron-
ore,coalandlabouretc.,coupledwithmarketfluctuations.TheCompanyapprehendsinherent risk in the shape of 
non availability of working capital. However following factors may pose threat, risk 
&concernfortheIron&SteelIndustryingeneralandyourcompanyinparticular: 

1. Anyadverseconditionsofusersectortowhichitcaters,thusadverselyaffectingthedemand. 
2. Underdevelopedinfrastructurecurtailinggrowthprospects. 

3. Thesupplyanddemandimbalanceduetonewcapacitiescomingonstreamwhichmayhavenegativeimpactontheplantutili
zationandsteelprices. 

4. Unexpectedreducedgrowthofthemanufacturingsectorimpactingdemand. 

5. Quantitativerestrictionsand/oradditionaltariffsofexportsfromIndiabyimportingcountries. 
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6. Unpredictableandsharpcyclicalmovementsintherawmaterialandotherinputprices. 
7. AnychangeinGovt.Policiespertainingtosteelindustrymayaffecttheprofitability. 
8. Timely availability of working capital remains a drag. 

TheopportunitiesofgrowthforyourcompanyasdetailedbelowaremanifoldinviewofitsStrengthswhichmayalsocount
ertheaboveconcerns:- 

1.  It is expected that the company will be able to tide over working capital constraints and better trends will 
emergeandmayimprovealsointhetimesahead.Assuchcurrentconditionsmaypaveawayforimprovedperformanceinfutu
re. 

2. Wellestablishedcustomersbaseforthelastover42 years. 

3. YourCompanyisfullypoisedtoreapthebenefitsofeconomiesofscaleanditwillbeinabetterpositiontonegotiate raw 
material prices on long term bulk lifting basis & definite savings on overheads will bring down 
thecostperunitofproductionandleadtohigherprofitability. 

4. YourCompanyhasstrategicadvantageasitsunitsarelocatedintheindustryfriendlyareashavingallinfrastructurala
menities. 

Thus,yourcompanystandsingoodsteadtoavailoftheopportunitiesandalsototakeheadonsuccessfullytheareasposingrisks
,concernsandthreatstoit. 

(d) EnvironmentSafety: 
Duringtheyearthecompanycontinuedwiththeimplementationofoccupationalhealthandsafety,qualityandenviron
mentalprotectionmeasuresandtheseareongoingprocessatthecompany'smanufacturingfacilities.Otherfactorsfo
rtheenvironmentalsafetywhichthecompanyhasfollowedincludeconservationofresourcesthroughwastereduction,
trainingofemployeesandadoptionofcleanertechnologies. 

(e) RisksandConcerns: 

A Risk Management Policy (Policy) has been adopted by the Company which aims to detail the objectives 
andprinciplesofriskmanagementalongwithanoverviewoftheprocessandrelatedrolesandresponsibilities.ThePoli
cylaysdownCompany'sapproachtowardsriskmitigation,itsriskmanagementobjectivesanddefinestheriskmanag
ementframeworkoftheorganization. 

InordertoensurethatthemanagementcontrolsriskinadherencetothepolicytheAuditCommitteeaswellastheBoardo
fDirectorsoftheCompanyperiodicallyreviewtheriskassessmentandriskminimizationprocedure. 

ThekeybusinessrisksidentifiedbytheCompanyanditsmitigationplansareasunder: 

i. RiskrelatedtoPersonnel:- 

Our business is increasingly dependent on the skills and competencies of our employees and 
managementteam. The general war for talent in our growing economy has created a substantial risk related to the 
retention 
ofkeypersonnelbothatmanufacturingandmanageriallevels.ThisriskismitigatedthrougheffectiveHRpoliciesrelati
ng to recruitment and retention and a proactive remuneration and rewards policy that is 
periodicallyreviewedatthehighestmanagementlevel.WithexcellentperformancetrackaswellasbestHRpractices,
weareabletoattractandretainpeopleforgrowthofourbusiness. 

ii. RiskrelatedtoSafety:- 

Thecompanyhastakenadequateinsurancecoverstoindemnifytherisksassociatedwiththesafetyofpersonnel,buildin
g,stockandPlant&MachineryandotherinfrastructureoftheCompany.Theseinclude: 

i) FireInsurancePolicies 
ii) VariousBreakdownPolicies 

iii) TheftinsurancePolicies 

ThecompanyhasalsotakenstepstostrengthenITsecuritysystemaswellasphysicalsecuritysystematallitslocations. 

iii. ComplianceRelatedRisks:- 
The Company is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen and respects the laws and regulations of 
thecountry. All the compliances under various laws applicable to the Company, including Companies Act, 

2013,FactoriesAct,1948andIncomeTaxAct1961etc.,arefollowedinletter&spirit. 

f) InternalFinancialControlSystemanditsadequacy: 
Your Company has a robust internal control system, which is constantly assessed and strengthened 
withnew/revised standard operating procedures. The Company's internal control system is commensurate with 
itssize, scale and complexities of its operations. The internal audit is entrusted to M/s. Gupta Sanjeev & 
Co.,Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 005365N). The main thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls of 
variousdepartmentsandareas.ThereviewsandfindingsbytheInternalAuditorsarediscussedwiththeprocessowns
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and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to 
improveefficiencyinoperations. 

Audit plays a key role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors. Significant audit observations 
andcorrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. To maintain 
itsobjectivityandindependence,theInternalAuditfunctionreportstotheChairmanoftheAuditCommittee. 

The Company has modified the scope and coverage for audits with a focus on the Internal Control on 
FinancialReporting (ICFR) framework. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the 

adequacy 
andeffectivenessoftheinternalcontrolsystemsandsuggestsimprovementstostrengthenthesame.TheCompanyhas
aneffectiveManagementInformationSystem,whichisanintegralpartofthecontrolmechanism. 

g) Cautionarystatement: 

Certain statements in this report concerning our future growth prospects are forward looking statements, 
whichinvolveanumberofrisks,anduncertaintiesthatcouldcauseactualresultstodiffermateriallyfromthoseinsuchfor
ward looking statements. The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, but are not limited to,risks 
and uncertainties regarding fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth. Intense competition 
withinSteelIndustryincludingthosefactorswhichmayaffectourcostadvantage,wageincreasesinIndia,ourabilitytoatt
ract and retain highly skilled professionals, our ability to successfully complete and integrate 
potentialacquisitions,thesuccessofthecompaniesinwhichthecompanyhasmadestrategicinvestments,withdrawal
ofgovernmental incentives, political instability, legal restrictions on raising capital or acquiring companies 
outsideIndia,generaleconomicconditionsaffectingourindustry.TheCompanydoesnotundertaketoupdateanyforwa
rdlookingstatementsthatmaybemadefromtimetotimebyoronbehalfoftheCompany. 
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ANNEXURE-IITOTHEDIRECTORS' REPORT 
FormNo.AOC-2 

(Pursuanttoclause(h)ofsub-
section(3)ofSection134oftheCompaniesAct,2013andRule8(2)oftheCompanies(Accounts)Rules,2014) 

Formfordisclosureofparticularsofcontacts/arrangementsenteredintobytheCompanywithrelatedpartiesreferredtoinsub-
section(1)ofsection188oftheCompaniesAct,2013includingcertainarm'slengthtransactionsunderthirdprovisothereto: 

1. Detailsofcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsnotatarm'slengthbasis: 
Therewerenosuchcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsenteredintoduringtheyearended31stMarch,2023. 

2. Detailsofmaterialcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsatarm'slengthbasis: 
Thedetailsofmaterialcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsatarm'slengthbasisfortheyearended31stMarch,2023a
regiveninthefinancialstatements. 

ANNEXURE-IIITOTHEDIRECTORS'REPORT 

DETAILSPERTAININGTOREMUNERATIONASREQUIREDUNDERSECTION197(12)OFTHECOMPANIESACT,
2013READWITHRULE5(1)OFTHECOMPANIES(APPOINTMENTANDREMUNERATIONOFMANAGERIALPERS

ONNEL)RULES,2014. 

i) 
ThepercentageincreaseinremunerationofeachDirector,ChiefFinancialOfficerandCompanySecretaryduringt

hefinancialyear2022-
23,ratiooftheremunerationofeachDirectortothemedianremunerationoftheemployeesoftheCompanyforthefi
nancialyear2022-

23andthecomparisonofremunerationofeachKeyManagerialPersonnel(KMP)againsttheperformanceoftheCo
mpanyareasunder: 

 

Sr.No. Name of 

Director/KMPandDesignat

ion 

Remuneration 

ofDirector/KMP 

forFY2022-23 

(Amt.inRs.) 

% 

increase/decreas

e inRemuneration 

intheFY2022-23 

Ratio 
ofRemuneration 
ofeachDirector/to
medianremuner
ation 
ofemployees 

Comparison 

ofremuneration 

oftheKMPagains

tthe 

performanceofth

ecompany 

1. Mr.KapilKumarJainChairman

& 

ManagingDirector 

Nil -100 -  
 

The Remuneration 

ofKMP against 

theperformance of 

thecompany is 

notcomparable in 

viewoflosses 

2. Mr.AjitKumarJha 

ChiefFinancialOfficer 

1,59,783 -19.45 - 

3. Mrs.KomalBhalla 

CompanySecretary 

3,66,021 2.75 - 

4. Mr.SumanJain

Non-Executive. 

IndependentDirector 

Nil Nil -- N.A. 

5. Mrs.ManojKumar#

Non-Executive 

IndependentDirector 

Nil Nil -- N.A. 

6. Mrs.NeelamSharma 

Non-Executive 

IndependentDirector 

Nil Nil -- N.A. 

i) ThemedianremunerationofemployeesoftheCompanyduringthefinancialyearwasRs.1,56,224/-. 
ii) Inthefinancialyear,therewasanIncreaseof48.11%inthemedianremunerationoftheemployees. 
iii) Therewere25permanentemployeesontherollsoftheCompanyason31stMarch,2023. 
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iv) Relationshipbetweenaverageincrease/decreaseinremunerationandcompanyperformance: 

TheCompanysufferedalossofRs1006.51lakhsascomparedtoRs.923.84lakhsinthepreviousyearwhichisnotcomparable 
with the Increase in median remuneration of 48.11%which is in line with the basic inflation given to theemployees. 

v) Comparison of the Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of 
theCompany: 

ThetotalremunerationofKeyManagerialPersonnelis decreasedby67.08%fromRs.15.95 lakhsin2021-
22toRs.5.25lakhsin2022-23,whereasthecompanyincurredalossofRs.923.84lakhs(2021-
22)asagainstalossofRs.1006.51lakhs(2022-23). 

vi) Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, Price-Earnings Ratio at the closing date of 
thecurrent financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the 

marketquotationsofthesharesoftheCompany,thevariationsinthenetworthofthecompanyasatthecloseoft
hecurrentfinancialyearandpreviousfinancialyear: 

Particulars Ason31.03.2023   Ason31.03.2022 

Shareprice(Rs.) 4.88 6.68 

MarketCapitalization(Rs.Lakhs): 241.56 330.66 

Price-EarningRatio -0.25 -0.72 

NetWorth(Rs.Lakhs):     -1887.09 -881 

TheCompany'ssharesarelistedonBSELimited. 

 
vii) The ratio of the highest paid director to that of the employee who are not directors but 

receiveremunerationinexcessofthehighestpaiddirectorduringtheyear: 

None of the Director in the Company has received any remuneration during the year under review. 
viii) AffirmationthattheremunerationisaspertheremunerationpolicyoftheCompany: 

Remunerationpaidto the employees other than Directors duringtheyearendedon 
31.03.2023isaspertheRemunerationPolicyoftheCompany. 

 
BYORDEROFTHEBOARDOFDIRECTORS 

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 
 
 

PLACE:LUDHIANA Sd/- 

DATED:02.09.2023 (KAPILKUMARJAIN) 

CHAIRMAN&MANAGINGDIRECTOR 

DIN:00755228 
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     ANNEXURE-IV 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageria l 

Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
To 
The Members, 
VALLABH STEELS LIMITED  
CIN: L27109PB1980PLC004327 
G.T. Road, Village Pawa, 
Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141120 
 
We have conducted a secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s. VALLABH STEELS LIMITED(hereinafter called “the Company”). The secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the management, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
 
1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Companyfor 

the financial year ended on 31st March,2023 according to the applicable provisions of: 
 

i.The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent applicable to 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI 

Act'):- 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 
 

vi. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended; 

 
2. We are informed that, for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 the Company was not required to maintain books, 

papers, minute books, forms and returns filed or other records according to the provisions of the following Regulations  and 
Guidelines prescribed under SEBI Act: 
 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.  

 
3. We have also checked/examined compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. 
 
4. During the period under review the Company has substantially complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, 

Standards and Agreements mentioned above except the following: 
 

i. BSE Limited imposed a penalty for non-compliance of Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for which the Company made a representation to BSE Limited clarifying its position. 
However, the said representation of the Company was accepted by BSE Limited and the penalty was waived-off during the 
reporting year. 

 
5. The compliance of other laws, rules and regulations specifically applicable to the Company is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.  
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6. We report that we have not examined the Financial Statement, financial books and related Financial Acts like Income Tax, 

Value Added Tax, Sales Tax, Goods & Services Tax Act, ESIC, Provident Fund and Professional Tax etc. For these matters we 
rely on the report of Statutory Auditors for financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 
7. We further report that: 

 
i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. However, as on the date of this Report the registration of one Independent Director 
as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2016 as amended from time to time is still under process. The Company also has a Woman Director on the Board. 

ii. Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Notices of Board Meetings were sent at least 
seven days in advance except where board meetings were convened at shorter notice to consider urgent matters. 
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent less than seven days before the meeting for meetings called on shorter 
notice. 

iii. A system exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings before majority decision is carried through. We are 
informed that there were no dissenting members' views on any of the matters during the year that were required to be 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

iv. As per minutes, the decisions at the Board meetings were taken unanimously. 
v. There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 

to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
vi. We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions such as Public Issue of Securities, buy 

back, merger, amalgamation, foreign technical collaborations etc. or any other major decisions in pursuance of section 
180 of the Companies Act, 2013 which require compliance of applicable provisions thereof. 

  
 

For JATIN SINGAL & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

       
  

 
Date: 30.08.2023                         (CS JATIN SINGAL) 
Place: Ludhiana    Prop. 

                                                    M. No.: F9719 
   C.P. No. 11976 

PR No.: 1108/2021 
UDIN:F009716E000897922 

 
 
 

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1 hereto 

and forms integral part of this report 
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Annexure - I
 
To 
The Members, 
VALLABH STEELS LIMITED  
CIN: L27109PB1980PLC004327 
G.T. Road, Village Pawa, 
Sahnewal, 
Ludhiana-141120 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 

our opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 

 
4. Compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of  the 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures followed by the company on test basis. 
 

5. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the secretarial audit report, we have also taken into consideration the 
compliance related actions taken by the Company after 31st March,2023 but before issue of the report. 

 
6. We have obtained the Management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 

events, wherever required. 
 

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For JATIN SINGAL & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 
       

  
 

Date: 30.08.2023                            (CS JATIN SINGAL) 
Place: Ludhiana                          Prop. 

                                                    M. No.: F9719 
   C.P. No. 11976 

PR No.: 1108/2021 
UDIN: F009716E000897922 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Para C (10) (i) Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To,  
The Members 
Vallabh Steels Limited 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the directors of Vallabh Steels 
Limited (CIN L27109PB1980PLC004327) and having its registered office at Village Pawa, G.T. Road, Sahnewal, Ludhiana -141120 
Punjab  (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Para C of Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanation furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the directors on the Board of the Company, as stated below, for the financial year ending on 31st  March, 
2023, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
 

S.No Name of the Director  Director 
Identification 

Number 

Category of Directorship as 
on March 31,2023 

Date of Appointment in the 
Company 

1.  Kapil Kumar Jain 00755228 Managing Director 15/03/1992 

2.  Neelam Sharma 07656064 Independent Director 29/01/2020 

3.  Suman Jain 07841463 Independent Director 06/06/2017 

4.  Manoj Kumar 09010294 Independent Director 28/12/2020 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
For JATIN SINGAL & ASSOCIATES  
Company Secretaries  
 
 
 
(CS JATIN SINGAL)  
Prop.  
M. No.: F9716 
CP No.: 11976 
PR No.: 1108/2021 
UDIN: F009716E000897933 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date: 30.08.2023 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of 

VALLABH STEELS LTD, 

 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

 

Qualified opinion  

 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of VALLABH STEELS LTD. (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the  
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement and for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting  

policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the 
matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the standalone financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India , of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31 March, 2023, and its Profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statement. 

 

 

I.Trade Receivables includes, certain debtors in respect of which no provision has been made as per IND AS 109 on financial 

instruments by applying expected credit loss method on receivables for getting fair value of assets.  

 

II.Inventorieshave been taken as Certified by the management. We have not verified the same. 

 

•No assessment to determine whether or not a material uncertainity exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern has been given to us. Accordingly, we are unable to 

comment upon the going concern of the entity. 

 

•Trade receivables, Loan and Advances and Trade payables are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.  

 

•Actuarial Valuation report has not been provided to us which is non-compliance of IND AS-19 “Employee Benefits”. In the 
absence of the same we are not able to ascertain the impact on the financial statements. 

 

•In respect of   Property, plant & equipment. As per IND AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” company should recognize impairment loss 

if the carrying value of the assets in the books of account is more than recoverable amount of the assets. Further IND AS specifies 
that enterprise should access at the end of each financial year whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

 

No such assessment has been done by the management, In the absence of the same we are unable to comment upon the fair 

value of the property, plant & equipment in the books of account. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 

We draw attention to the following: 

 

•Accounts of the company have been categorized as NPA. Aaccordingly, all bank balances  are subject to confirmation. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind 

AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters. 
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We have not come across with any key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

 

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon  

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Directors Report, including annexure thereto, Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & 

Analysis Report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 

on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of  
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

  

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or  

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.  

 

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the 

Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

 

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to  
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modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone Ind AS financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 

statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements. 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order. 

 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Section, we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

 

b) In our opinion, except for the matters stated in the Basis of Qualified Section, proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) Except for the matters stated in the Basis of Qualified Section, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
report are in agreement with the books of account; 

 

d) Except for the matters stated in the Basis of Qualified Section, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act; 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in 

terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an 
modified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting. 

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. 
 

h) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations   given to us, we report that the 

managerial Remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2023 has not been paid to its directors. Accordingly, this 

clause is not applicable. 

 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us:  
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i)The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements. 

 

ii)The Company do not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses. 

 

iii)There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Company. 

 

iv)   a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement. 

 

V) Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, accordingly, commenting on whether dividend 

declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

 

 

 For K.R. Aggarwal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

              FRN: 030088N 

 

  

                CA VivekAneja 

Place: Ludhiana                                                                                                                                               (Partner) 

Date: 26/05/2023                                                                                                   Membership No: 544757 

UDIN: 23544757BGYODT2793 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.” Section of our report of 

even date) 

 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during 

the course of our audit, we report that: 

 

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:  

 

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of 

Property, Plant & Equipment. 

 

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

 

b)  The company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment to cover most of the items in 

phased manner over a period of regular intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of 

company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program a portion of Property, Plant & Equipment were verified 
by the management during the year. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification;  

 

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the company. However, none is made available 
to us as they are pledged with the financial institutions.  

 

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible Assets during the year; 

 

e)  No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31st March, 2023, for 

holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 

made thereunder.   

 

II) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us: 

 

a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management, the coverage and 

procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class 
of inventory were noticed.  

 

b) Accounts of the company have been categorized as NPA and the company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit. 

Accordingly, the clause is not applicable. 

 

III) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books and records by us,  

 

(a)A. The company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)(A) of the Order 
is not applicable.  

 

      B.  The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security 

to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

 

(b) As clause a above is not applicable on the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(b),(c),(d),(e) & (f) of the Order 

are not applicable. 

 

IV) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the clause regarding compliance of  Sections 185 

and 186 of the Act is not applicable on the company. 

 

V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposit from 
the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order 

are not applicable to the Company. 

 

VI) We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the central government 
for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (l) of section 148 of the act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the 

prescribed accounts have been prepared and maintained. However, we have not made the detailed examination of records. 

 

VII) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined by us, the 
company is generally being regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 

the appropriate authorities in India. 
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Further, we report that no undisputed amount payable with respect to such statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 
2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the company examined by us, there are no 

dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other 
material statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any disputes. 

 

VIII) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

IX) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us: 

 

(a) The Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a banks and financial institution and also has not issued 

debentures during the year and has not taken any fresh loans or borrowings from Government. 

 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority;  

 

(c) During the year No Term loans have been raised by the company. 

 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds have been raised accordingly there is no 
question of usage of short-term loans for long-term purposes by the Company;  

 

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures accordingly the point is not applicable.   

 

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures accordingly the point is not applicable. 

 

X) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us: 

(a)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public   offer (including debt instruments) and 

term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally 

convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company 

 

XI) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us : 

 

(a)  No fraud by or on the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit;  

 

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report;  

 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year;  

 

XII) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

XIII) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 

party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 

XIV) (a) In our opinion, the company has not an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.  

 

(b) We have not considered, the reports issued by the internal auditor of the company till date for the period under audit as 

the same has not been shared with us. 

 

XV)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



2022-2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI)a)The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;  

 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid Certificate 

of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, 

the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;  

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are two Core Investment Companies within the Group (As 

defined in the Core Investment Companies [Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016). 

 

XVII)The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year;  

 

XVIII)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and accordingly reporting under 

clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company;  

 

XVIX) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 49(a) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying Standalone 

Ind AS Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, there is  material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 

the balance sheet date.  

 

XX)As per the information and explanations given to us and on basis of books and records examined by us, we report that since 
the Company has average net losses during the immediately preceding three financial years, it is not required to spend any 

money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act and accordingly, any reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company for the year; 

 

XXI)The requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the 

Company. 
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Annexure – B to Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in our report of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”)  

  

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VALLABH STEELS LTD. as of 31st March, 2023 in 

conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.   

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 

 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transact ions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with Authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable Assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS 

financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 

risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
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Opinion  

 

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has, in all material  

respects Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Section an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2023, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 

 

For K.R. Aggarwal & Associates 

     Chartered Accountants 

           FRN: 030088N 

  

 

           CA VivekAneja 

     Place: Ludhiana                                                               (Partner) 

     Date: 26/05/2023                                                Membership No: 544757 

     UDIN: 23544757BGYODT2793 
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Note  As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022 
ASSETS
Non-current assets

a)Property, Plant and Equipment 3a 1,029.62                    1,187.27                            
b)Capital work in progress 3b 88.25                        88.25                                
c)Financial Assets
    i) Investments 5a 9.35                          9.35                                  
   ii) Security Deposits 5b 3.72                          3.87                                  
d)Other non current assets 6 1,220.93                    1,220.79                            

2,351.87                   2,509.51                           
Current assets

a)Inventories 7 59.01                        835.96                              
b)Financial Assets
    i)Trade receivable 8a 277.87                      308.67                              
    ii)Cash and cash equivalents 8b 2.35                          19.81                                
    iii)Loans 8c 0.24                          0.24                                  
c)Current tax assets 9 33.32                        33.26                                
d)Other current assets 10 38.69                        53.83                                

411.48                      1,251.78                           
Total Assets 2,763.35                   3,761.30                           

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11 495.00                      495.00                              
Other Equity 12 -2382.09 -1375.60

Total Equity (1,887.09)                 (880.60)                            

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a)Financial Liabilities
   i)Borrowings 13a 572.27                      572.27                              
  ii)Other Financial Liabilities 13b 10.28                        10.28                                
b) Provisions 14 8.72                          9.05                                  
c)Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 (57.87)                       (52.52)                               
d)Other non current liabilities 16 -                            -                                    

533.40                      539.08                              
Current liabilities
a)Financial Liabilities
    i)Borrowings 17a 4,060.73                    4,060.73                            
    ii)Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 13.62 14.31                                

    iii)Other Financial Liabilities 17c 39.78                        24.24                                
b)Other current liabilities 18 2.42                          2.42                                  
c)Provisions 19 0.50                          1.12                                  

4,117.05                   4,102.82                           
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,763.35                   3,761.30                           

As per our separate report of even date attached
For KR AGGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES,         Sd/-
Chartered Accountants (Suman Jain)
FRN: 030088N Director
        Sd/- DIN: 07841463
CA Vivek Aneja
Partner         Sd/-
M. No. 544757 (Komal Bhalla) (Ajit Kumar Jha)
UDIN NO : 23544757BGYODT2793 Company Secretary) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ludhiana
Dated : 26.05.2023

        Sd/-

Chairman & Managing 
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
financial statements 1 to 39

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                              Annual Report 2022-23

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023
     CIN: L27109PB1980PLC004327

17b

        Sd/-
(Kapil Kumar Jain)

DIN: 00755228
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(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Notes
 Current Year As on 

31.03.2023 
 Previous Year As on 

31.03.2022 

I Revenue from Operations 20 -                                       93.28                               
II Other Income 21 0.61                                     0.94                                 

III Total income(I+II) 0.61                                     94.22                               

IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 22 18.17                                   37.86                               
Change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work -in-
progress 24 2.19                                     66.14                               
Employee benefit expense 25 54.68                                   81.46                               
Finance costs 26 0.00                                     1.14                                 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 157.65                                  192.44                             
Other expenses 27 779.79                                  647.66                             

Total expenses(IV) 1,012.48                               1,026.70                          

V Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) (1,011.87)                              (932.48)                            
VI Tax expense

(1) Current tax -                                      -                                  
MAT credit entitlement -                                      -                                  
(2) Deferred tax (5.35)                                    (8.64)                               

VII Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI) (1,006.52)                              (923.84)                            

VIII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans -                                       -                                  
(ii) Net (loss)/gain on FVOCI equity securities -                                       -                                  

B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                       -                                  
Total Other Comprehensive Income -                                       0.01                                 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
(VII+VIII)(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period) (1,006.52)                              (923.83)                            

X Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (Face value of 
equity share `10 each) 31 -20.33 -18.66

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial 
statements 1 to 39
As per our separate report of even date attached

For KR AGGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 030088N Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- (Kapil Kumar Jain) (Suman Jain)

CA Vivek Aneja
Chairman & Managing 

Director Director
Partner DIN: 00755228 DIN: 07841463
M. No. 544757

Sd/- Sd/-
UDIN NO : 23544757BGYODT2793 (Ajit Kumar Jha) (Komal Bhalla)
Place : Ludhiana Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary)
Dated : 26.05.2023

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                              Annual Report 2022-23

For and on behalf of board

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
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(Amt. in Lacs)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

2022-23 2021-22

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before Tax (1,011.87)                               (932.48)                               
Adjustment for:
Amortization of Financial assets and Liabilities -                                       0.28                                    
Deferred Tax -                                       -                                      
Loss on sale of Investment -                                       -                                      
Loss on sale of  shares -                                       -                                      
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets -                                       0.11                                     
Profit on sale of Land -                                       -                                      
Depreciation 157.65                                 192.44                                 
Finance Cost -                                       -                                      

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan                             -
Income Tax Adjustment Of Earlier Year
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (854.22)                                 (739.65)                               
Adjustment for
Trade and Other Receivables 30.80                                   247.38                                
Inventories 776.95                                 299.29                                
Trade and Other Payables (0.69)                                    (16.21)                                 
Movement in Short term loans or advances 15.15                                   2.20                                    
Other Current Liabilities 32.01                                   (11.05)                                 
Cash Generated from operations 854.22                                 (218.03)                               
Direct Taxes -                                       -                                      
Net Cash from Operating Activities -A 854.22                                 (218.03)                               

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payments for capital goods -                                       -                                      
Sales of Fixed Assets -                                       232.11                                 
Purchase of Investments -                                                                   -
Sales of Investment -                                       
Net cash Flow in Investing Activities- B -                                       232.11                                 

(C.) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Financial Expenses -                                       -                                      
Movement in Long-term borrowings -                                       -                                      
Movement in Working Capital Borrowings -                                       (11.67)                                 

Net Cash flow in Financing Activities -C -                                       -11.67
Net Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) -                                        2.41                                    
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.35                                      17.40                                  
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 2.35                                      19.81                                   

Notes :
1  Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever 

considered necessary, to make them comparable with current year's 
figures. 

2 Figures in brackets represent payments.

As per our separate report of even date attached

For KR AGGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES, Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants (Kapil Kumar Jain) (Suman Jain)

FRN: 030088N
 Chairman & Managing 

Director Director
         Sd/- DIN: 00755228 DIN: 07841463
CA Vivek Aneja
Partner Sd/- Sd/-
M. No. 544757 (Ajit Kumar Jha) (Komal Bhalla)

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary)
Place : Ludhiana
Dated : 26.05.2023

Particulars

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

For and on behalf of board
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(Amt. in Lacs)

Note Issued 
capital

Share 
forfeited

Retained 
earnings 

General 
reserve

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redempti

on 
Reserve

Contingent 
 Liability 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium Total Equity

As at 1 April 2021          495.00              -               -1,084.50         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61                   43.25 
Issue of share capital
Dividends
Transactions with owners          495.00              -               -1,084.50         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61                   43.25 

Profit/(loss) for the period                -923.83                -923.83 
Remeasurement gain/(Loss) on Defined 
benefit plan                        -                          -   

Other Comprehensive Income                        -                          -   
Income tax adjustemnts of earlier year                        -                          -   
Total comprehensive income                -923.83                -923.83 
Grand Total as at 31 March 2022          495.00              -               -2,008.34         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61                -880.59 

As at 1 April 2022          495.00              -               -2,008.34         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61                -880.59 
Issue of share capital
Dividends
Transactions with owners          495.00              -               -2,008.34         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61                -880.59 

Profit/(loss) for the period             -1,006.51             -1,006.51 
Remeasurement gain/(Loss) on Defined 
benefit plan                        -                          -   

Other Comprehensive Income                        -                          -   
Income tax adjustemnts of earlier year                        -   
Income tax adjustemnts of the year
Total comprehensive income -1,006.51                        -1,006.51 
Grand Total as at 31 March 2023          495.00              -               -3,014.84         457.14                   -                -                  -          175.61             -1,887.09 

As per our separate report of even date attached For and on behalf of board
For KR AGGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES, Sd/-
Chartered Accountants (Suman Jain)
FRN: 030088N Chairman & Managing Director Director

              Sd/- DIN: 07841463
CA Vivek Aneja
Partner
M. No. 544757

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ludhiana
Dated : 26.05.2023

(Komal Bhalla)
Company Secretary)

(Ajit Kumar Jha)

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

(Kapil Kumar Jain)

DIN: 00755228

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                                                                Annual Report 2022-23

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2023

 Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Reserves and surplus
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1. Background 
Vallabh Steels Limited is a Public incorporated on 25 November 1980. It is classified as Non-govt company and is registered at Registrar of 
Companies, Chandigarh. Its authorized share capital is Rs. 50,000,000 and its paid up capital is Rs. 49,500,000.It is inolved in Manufacture of 
Basic Iron & Steel.
It is an established name Nationally & Internationally as one of the leading manufacturer of Galvanized Coils /Sheets, Pre-Painted 
Galvanized Coils and sheets, Galvanized Steel Tubes, Precision Steel Tubes, Galvanized Steel Pipes, Steel Square Tube, Galvanized & Pre-
Painted Corrugated Sheets, Pre- painted Trapezoidal / Tile Profile Sheets and PUF Panels etc. 

2. Significant accounting policies 
The significant accounting policies applied by company in the preparation of financial statements are listed below such policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented.

a)    Basis of Preparation 
(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

The  financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
(i)Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and
(ii)Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation.

(iii)Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to two decimals places to the nearest lacs as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

b) Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair 
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have 
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
Investment in unquoted equity shares
Financial instruments
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c) Current versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in 
the Schedule III to the Act.
d) Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has adopted optional exemption under Ind AS 101 to measure Property, Plant and Equipment at 
previous GAAP carrying value. Consequently, the previous GAAP carrying value has been assumed to be deemed cost of Property, Plant 
and Equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the Written Down Value Method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their useful lives. 
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. The 
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

e) Impairment of Non-financial assets

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of 
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

f)  Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw 
materials and stores & spares at the weighted average cost, Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct 
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating 
capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of 
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. 

g)  Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted 
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expense in the period in which they are incurred.

h)  Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for 
future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
end of the reporting period.
A present obligation that arises from past events where it is neither probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle nor a 
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a 
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements 
since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

i)  Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is 
Vallabh Steels Limited functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency translations are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

j)   Revenue recognition
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty 
and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts, value added taxes.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

Sale of goods
Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to customer as per the terms of the contract, there is no 
continuing managerial involvement with the goods. The Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually 
associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale 
of goods., in case of domestic customer, sales take place when goods are dispatched or delivery is handed over to transporter, in case of 
export customers, sales takes place when goods are shipped onboard based on bill of lading.

Revenue from Services
Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Other operating revenue - Export incentives
Revenue in respect of export incentives is recognised when such incentives accrue upon export of goods.

k)   Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax 
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax 
losses.
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable 
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the 
deferred tax balances relate to same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

l)   Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and other bank balances.

m)    Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
provision for impairment if any. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial 
instrument.

n)   Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and 
ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of following:
• the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
• the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised Cost:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
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• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through OCI:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:
• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and
• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value 
through OCI.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the 
classification of the financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as 
FVTPL:
Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the 
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid 
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected 
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Impairment of financial assets:
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. The Company 
assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach 
permitted by Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does 
not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a 
provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the 
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained 
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received.

o)   Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

p)  Employee benefits
i)   Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, short term compensated absences and ex-gratia short terms compensated absences and ex-gratia including 
non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the balance sheet.
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ii)   Post-employment obligations

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligations 
at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in
the balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

q)   Segment reporting
The Company operates only in one segment. i.e. Iron and steel.

r)   Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit period allowed. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. Long term trade payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

s)   Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity servicesand amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before
the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify
the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

t) Earnings per share

i)   Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
The profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

ii)  Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average 
number of additional equity shares that would been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Note: 2.1 Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about 
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the  financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 
Estimation of defined benefit obligation – Note 36

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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As at Sales/ As at As at For the Sales Adjustment/ As at As at As at
4/1/2022 Adjustment 3/31/2023 4/1/2022 Period Depreciation Written back 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2022

Land 121.13        -          -                  121.13        -               -                        -                 -                 -              121.13        121.13        
Building 539.03        -          -                  539.03        396.72         13.39                    -                 -                 410.11        128.92        142.31        
Plant & Machinery 6,296.41     -          -                  6,296.41     5,376.19      144.06                  -                 -                 5,520.25     776.16        920.22        
Furniture & Fixtures 32.31          -          -                  32.31          30.37           0.15                      -                 -                 30.52          1.79             1.94             
Vehicle 47.01          -          -                  47.01          45.35           0.04                      -                 -                 45.39          1.62             1.66             

Total 7,035.89     -          -                  7,035.89     5,848.63      157.64                  6,006.27     1,029.62     1,187.25     
Capital Work in Progress 88.25          -          -                  88.25          -               -                        -                 -                 -              -              -              
Grand Total 7,124.14     -          -                  7,124.14     5,848.63      157.64                  -                 -                 6,006.27     1,029.62     1,187.25     
Previous Year 7,356.25     -          232.11            7,124.14     5,656.18      192.44                  -                 -                 5,848.63     1,187.27     1,611.81     

Total

Particulars
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Additions

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Property, Plant and Equipment DEPRICIATION CHART COMPANIES ACT 2022-23 (Rs. in Lacs)
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(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2023 
 As at 31 

March 2022 

3b Capital Work-in-Progress
Building under construction -                              -   
Machinary under erection 88.25                     88.25 

Total 88.25         88.25         

4a

5a Investments
(i) Investment in Equity Instrument 

Investments at fair value through OCI
Investments in others (Quoted)

DMC education limited 0.47            0.47            
67200 (Previous Year 67200) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each.

Sub Total 0.47           0.47           

(ii) Investment in Equity Instrument 
Investments at fair value through OCI
Investments in Others (Unquoted) 

Associated Leasing Limited 8.88            8.88            
26000 (Previous Year 26000) Fully paid up Equity shares of 
Rs. 10/- each.

Sub Total 8.88           8.88           

TOTAL (i+ii) 9.35           9.35           

1. Market Value of Quoted Investment 0.47           0.47           
2. Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 8.88           8.88           
3. Aggregate amount of Total Investment 9.35           9.35           

5b Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured considered good)
Security Deposit 3.72            3.87            

Total 3.72           3.87           
Security Deposit includes electricity security and transporter security etc

6 Other Non-Current Assets
Capital Advances 1,220.93     1,220.93     
Prepaid Expense -              (0.14)           

Total 1,220.93     1,220.79     
Capital Advances are towards Haryana State Industrial Development Corp.

7 Inventories 
(As taken, valued and approved by management)
Raw Materials -              18.17          
Work-in-Progress -              1.22            
Finished Goods 8.45            9.42            
Stores and Spares 50.56          807.15        

Total 59.01          835.96        

8a Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 277.88        308.68        

Total 277.88        308.68        

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                 Annual Report 2022-23

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Capital Work-in-Progress includes project development expenditure, cost of construction materials, machinery, interest 
& other expenses.
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Trade Receivables Aging Schedule as on 31st March 2023

Not Due
Less than 6 
months 1-2 year 2-3 year

More than 
3 years

-                    -             -             -              277.88       277.88       

-                    -             -             -             -            -            

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

Trade Receivables Aging Schedule as on 31st March 2022

Not Due
Less than 6 
months 1-2 year 2-3 year

More than 
3 years

-                    -             -             -              308.68       308.68       

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

-                    -             -             -             -           -           

8b Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - current accounts 1.32            1.01            
Cash-in-Hand 1.03            18.80          

Total 2.35           19.81          

8c Loans 
Advances to employees 0.24            0.24            

Total 0.24           0.24           

9 Current tax assets
Income Tax 0.06            2.43            
Advance Income Tax (Previous Years) 33.26          30.83          

Total 33.32         33.26         
10

Other current assets
Advances to suppliers 24.39          35.58          
Balance with government authorities 8.00            6.92            
Prepaid expenses 0.12            0.41            
Others 6.19            10.93          

Total 38.69         53.83         

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have a significant
 increase in credit ris

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have a significant
 increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

Total

Particulars Total

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have a significant
 increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

 (iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have a significant
 increase in credit ris
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Particulars  As at 31 March 
2023 

 As at 31 March 
2022 

11    Equity Share Capital
Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share

Authorised
4950000  equity shares of Rs. 10 each 495.00                 495.00                 

Total 495.00                 495.00                 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
4950000  equity shares of Rs. 10 each 495.00                 495.00                 

(Amount originally paid up) 495.00                 495.00                 

11a Reconciliation of the number  of equity Shares outstanding : 
At the beginning of the year 4,950,000.00        4,950,000.00        
Outstanding at the end of year 4,950,000.00       4950000.00

11b  Terms/rights attached to equity shares : 

11c Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares : 
Name of the shareholders

No. of shares  % of Holding No. of shares  % of Holding 
Mr. Rahul Jain 280000 5.66% 280000 5.66%
Mr. Vikram Jain 300200 6.06% 300200 6.06%
M/s Vardhman Industires Ltd 295000 5.96% 295000 5.96%
M/s Adhinath Investments P. Ltd 798600 16.13% 798600 16.13%
M/s Hind Leasing & Finance Ltd 547400 11.06% 547400 11.06%
M/s Associated Leasing Ltd 411500 8.31% 411500 8.31%

11d Detail of Shareholding of Promoters in Equity Shares

Number of 
Shares % of holding

Number of 
Shares % of holding

Rahul Jain 280,000.00     5.66% 280,000.00      5.66% -
Vikram Jain 300,200.00     6.06% 300,200.00      6.06% -
Kapil Kumar Jain 232,000.00     4.69% 232,000.00      4.69% -
Associated Leasing Limited 411,500.00     8.31% 411,500.00      8.31%
Adhinath Investments Private Limited 798,600.00     16.13% 798,600.00      16.13%
Hind Leasing and finance limited 547,400.00     11.06% 547,400.00      11.06%

12    Other Equity

Securities Premium Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 175.61                 175.61                 

General Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 457.14                 457.14                 
Retained Earnings (3,014.83)             (2,008.33)             

(2,557.69)            (1,551.19)             
Retained Earnings
Balance as per last Balance Sheet (2,008.33)             (1,084.50)             
Add:  Profit for the year (1,006.51)             (923.84)                
Add: Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan -                       -                       
Add: Other Comprehensive income -                       -                       
Add: Ind AS Adjustments -                       -                       
Less : Transfer to General Reserve -                       -                       
Less : Income Tax adjustments of earlier years -                       -                       
Balance transferred to General Reserve (3,014.83)            (2,008.33)            
Total (2,382.10)            (1,375.60)            
TOTAL EQUITY (1,887.10)             (880.60)               

% 
change 
during 

 As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022 

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                                          Annual Report 2022-23

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The company has only one class of Equity Shares having  face value of Rs.10/- each. Each holder of equity share is  entitled to only  one vote per share. 

As At 31st March, 2023 As At 31st March, 2022

Promoter Name
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 As at 31 
March 

2023 

 As at 31 
March 2022 

13a Borrowings
From Banks
Term loans (Secured) 572.27     572.27         
From Others
Loans and advances from Related parties 
(Unsecured) -          -               

Total 572.27    572.27         

13a.1

13b Other Financial Liabilities
Security Deposit 10.28       10.28           

Total 10.28       10.28           
Security Deposit includes security received from transporters and contractors etc.

14 Provisions
Provision for Gratuity 8.72         9.05             

Total 8.72        9.05            

15 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (57.87)      (52.52)          

Total (57.87)     (52.52)         

16 Other Non-current Liabilities
Deferred Income -          -               

Total -          -              
17a Borrowings

From Banks
Loans repayable on demand from PNB 4,060.73  4,060.73       
Current Maturities -          -               

Total 4,060.73 4,060.73      

17a.1

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                 Annual Report 2022-23

Working capital loans from banks  are primarily secured by hypothecation of entire present and future tangible 
current asset of the company anjd personally guaranteed by a director of  the company.  It is further secured by 
second charge on block of assets of  the company.

There was default in the repayment of borrowings and interest thereon. Accoedingly, accounts of the ompany in 
bank has been classified as sub standard.

Repayment terms and security disclosure for the outstanding long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 
as on 31 March, 2023

In view of default in payment of interest/repayment of installments, no separate disclosure for current maturities 
and for repayment schedule has been given. 

Term loan of OBC is secured by first charge on the block of asset of the company & second charge on entire 
current assets situated at G.T. Road, Sahnewal, Ludhiana & personally guaranteed by a director of the company.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

46



17b Trade Payables
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises             -                    -   
Trade Payables 13.62       14.31           
Due to others             -                    -   

Total        13.62             14.31 
17b.1

Trade payable ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2023 (` in Lacs)

Not Due  1-2 
Years 

2-3 Years
 More Than 

3 years Total

-          -        3.06         10.56           13.62          

Trade payable ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2022 (` in Lacs)

Not Due 1-2
Years 

2-3 Years More Than
3 years 

Total

         0.19        3.55 6.56              4.00 14.31

17c Other Financial Liabilities

Expenses Payable 39.78       24.24           
Cheque issued but not presented for payment -          -               

Total 39.78      24.24           

Other current Liabilities
18 Statutory dues payables -          -               

Advance from customers 2.41         2.41             
Deferred Income -          -               
Others -          -               

Total 2.42        2.42            

Provisions
19 Provision for Employee benefits 0.50         1.12             

Total 0.50        1.12             
Provision for employee benefit  include short term liability for gratuity determined as per acturial valuation

Total

Outstanding For Following Periods From Due Date Of Payment

Outstanding For Following Periods From Due Date Of Payment

Particulars

Total

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues-Others

Particulars

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues-Others

The Company has not received any communication from all of it’s suppliers/service providers in response to 
letters issued by the Company, confirming whether or not they are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Development Act, 2006. In the absence of any positive confirmation from the suppliers/service providers, the 
information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006 could not be 
determined.
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 As at 31 March 
2023 

 As at 31 March 
2022 

20 Revenue from operations
Sale of products -                     93.28                      

Total -                     93.28                     

20.1 Details Of Products Sold
C.R. COIL -                     29.80                      
G.P. COIL -                     38.39                      
SCRAP -                     25.09                      
RAW MATERIAL & OTHERS -                     -                         

-                     93.28                     

21 Other Income

Interest income 0.61                    0.20                        
Rental income -                     -                         
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets -                     -                         

Others -                     0.75                        
Total 0.61                    0.94                       

22 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock 18.17                  56.03                      
Add  : Purchases (Net) -                     -                         
Less: Closing Stock -                     18.17                      

Total 18.17                  37.86                     

22.1 Detail  of Cost of Material Consumed

H.R. COILS -                     37.86                     

-                     37.86                     

23 Purchases of stock-in-trade -                     -                         

24 Change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work -in-progress

Opening stock
     Work-in-Progress 1.22                    1.22                        
     Finished Goods / Stock in Trade 9.42                    75.56                      
Less: Closing Stock
      Work-in-Progress -                     1.22                        
      Finished Goods / Stock in Trade 8.45                    9.42                        

Total 2.19                    66.14                      

25 Employee benefit expense

Salary, Wages and other Allowances 35.53                  62.05                      
Staff Recruitment  &Development expenses -                     -                         
Contribution to Provident and other funds 1.05                    2.91                        
Gratuity & Ex Gratia -                     -                         
Staff Welfare Expenses 18.09                  16.50                      

Total 54.68                 81.46                      

26 Finance cost

Interest Expense -                     1.10                        
Other Borrowings Cost 0.001                  0.04                        

Total 0.00                   1.14                        

27 Other expenses

a.) Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores,consumables &  spare parts 756.83                224.75                    

VALLABH STEELS LIMITED                              Annual Report 2022-23

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2023
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Power and Fuel 12.85                  139.74                    
Machinery Repairs and Maintenance -                     40.22                      
Other manufacturing expenses -                     1.85                        

Sub-Total 769.68                406.56                    

b.) Administrative & Other Expenses
Rates & Taxes 3.26                    12.27                      
Insurance 0.97                    0.74                        
Legal & Professional Expenses 2.80                    4.15                        
Travelling & Conveyance -                     22.75                      
Repairs and Maintenance 1.29                    3.32                        
Payment To Auditor 0.50                    0.50                        
Charity & Donation -                     -                         
Directors Remuneration -                     9.00                        
Electricity & water charges 0.02                    2.66                        
Loss on Sale/discard of Fixed Assets -                     0.11                        
Provision for bad debts -                     180.96                    
Membership & subscription -                     1.47                        
Printing & stationery -                     0.84                        
Postage & telecommunication exp 1.01                    0.93                        
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.01                    1.00                        

Sub-Total 9.86                   240.70                    

c.) Selling Expenses
Forwarding and Octroi
Commission & Brokerage -                     -                         
 Advertisement 0.25                    0.19                        
Rebate & Discount -                     -                         
Other Selling Expenses -                     0.21                        

Sub-Total 0.25                   0.40                       

Total (a+b+c) 779.79                647.66                    

27.1 Payment To Auditor
 i) Audit Fees 0.50                    0.50                        
 ii) In Other Capacity -                     -                         
 iii) Reimbursement of Expenses -                     -                         

0.50                   0.50                       

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR  : 

29 Capital Commitment

30

31 Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Ind  AS-33) 2022-23 2021-22
Profit/(loss) after  Tax (Rs. in Lacs) ######### (923.84)       
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares 4950000 4950000
Weighted average no. of diluted  shares 4950000 4950000
Nominal  value of ordinary share (`) 10 10
Basic / Diluted   Earning Per  Share (`) -20.33     -18.66         

32 Company operates in only one segment viz iron and steel

33  Related Party Disclosures as required by IND AS-24 issued by the  ICAI are  as under:
(a) Disclosure of Related Parties and relationship between the parties.

1   Key Management Personnel 
a) Mr.Kapil Kumar Jain
b) Mr. Ajit Kumar Jha
c) Ms. Komal Bhalla

NIL

IN THE OPINION OF THE MANAGEMENT THE CURRENT ASSETS AND LOANS AND ADVANCES HAVE A VALUE ON REALISATION IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSSINESS AT 
LEAST EQUAL TO THE VALUE AT WHICH THEY ARE STATED IN THE FOREGOING BALANCE SHEET, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. 

NIL
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2   Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and relative of such personnel is able to exercise  significant influence or control 

(b) Detail of transactions entered into with related parties during the year: (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars
22-23 21-22 22-23 21-22

Short Term Benfits TO  KMP 5.26 15.95 15.95            15.95                        

Remuneration of KMP 

PARTICULARS 

As at 
31st  March, 

2023
As at 

31st  March, 2022
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)

(i)  Short Term  Benefits* 5.26 15.95
Total 5.26 15.95

34 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

PARTICULARS 

As at 
31st  March, 

2023
As at 

31st  March, 2022
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)

a) Value of Import on CIF basis
(i) Raw Material -                    -                             
(ii) Capital Goods & Stores -                    -                             

35  Value  of Imported and Indigenous Raw Material, Consumables, Spare Parts, Components & Store Consumed.

PARTICULARS 
(%age) (%age)

(i) Raw Material
Imported -                               -                         -                             
Indigenous 100.00% 100.00%

ii) Consumables, Stores, Spares Parts & Components
Imported -                         -                             
Indigenous 100.00% 100.00%

36 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

Judgements 

Estimates and assumptions 

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

As at 
31st  March, 2023

As at 
31st  March, 2022

37.86

756.83

(Rs. in Lacs)

Enterprises in which Key 
Management Personnel and 

relative of such personnel is able 
to exercise 

significant influence or control . Key Management Personnel  (KMP) 

0.00

224.75

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future 
periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is 
based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected 
future inflation rates.
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37 Post Retirement Benefits Plan (Ind AS 19)
Defined Benefit Plan 

PARTICULARS 

As at 
31st  March, 

2023
As at 

31st  March, 2022
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)

Changes in defined benefit obligation
Present value obligation as at the start of the year -                     0.00
Interest cost -                     0.00
Current service cost -                     0.00
Actuarial loss/(Gains) -                     0.00
Benefits paid -                     0.00
Present value obligation as at the end of the year -                     0.00

Breakup of Actuarial gain/loss:
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption -                     -                         
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment -                     0.00
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate -                     -                         

-                     0.00

Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet

Present value obligation as at the end of the year -                     0.00
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year -                     -                         
Net Asset/(Liability) in Balance Sheet -                     0.00

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost -                     0.00
Interest cost -                     0.00
Interest Income on plan assets -                     -                         
(Income)/Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss -                     0.00

Remeasurements recognised in the 
statement of Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI)

Experience Adjustments -                     0.00
Changes in Financial Assumptions -                     -                         
Return  on plan assets (greater)/lesser then discount Rates -                     -                         
Net Loss /(Gain) recognised in other 
comprehensive income -                     0.00

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 6.75% 6.75%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Employee turnover Rate

(18 to 30 Years) 5.00% 5.00%
(30 to 44 Years) 3.00% 3.00%
(44 to 60 Years) 2.00% 2.00%

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 
on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the 
asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. 
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Mortality Rate
IALM 2006-08 
Ultimate

IALM 2006-08 
Ultimate

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are :

Impact of the change in discount rate 2022-23 2021-22
a) Impact due to increase of  1.00% -                         
b) Impact due to decrease of  1.00% -                         
Impact of change in salary Escalation Rate
a) Impact due to increase of  1.00% -                         
b) Impact due to decrease of  1.00% -                         
Impact of change in Employee turnover Rate
a) Impact due to increase of  1.00% -                         
b) Impact due to decrease of  1.00% -                         

The sensitivity analysis above have been 

Expected Future cash flow 
The expected future cash flow in respect of gratuity as at 31st March, 2023 were as follows:

Expected contribution 
The expected future employer contributions for defined benefit plan as at 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 1.22 Lacs(for the year ended 31st March, 2022 i.e. 1.22  Lacs ) 

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flow) 
Gratuity   12 Years 14 Years
The following are the expected future benefits payments for the defined benefit plan :

PARTICULARS 
As at 

31st  March, 2023 PARTICULARS 
As at 

31st  March, 2022
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)

Description Description
March 31, 2021 -                          March 31, 2020 -                         
March 31, 2022 1.86 March 31, 2021 1.86
March 31, 2023 0.84 March 31, 2022 0.84
March 31, 2024 0.40 March 31, 2023 0.40
March 31, 2025 0.35 March 31, 2024. 0.35
March 31, 2026. 2.39 March 31, 2025. 2.39
March 31, 2026 onwards 8.43 March 31, 2025 onwards 8.43

Period As at: 31-03-2022
Current Liability (Short Term) 1.22
Non Current Liability (Long Term) 7.83
Total Liability 9.05

38 Fair value measurement 
(a) Financial instruments by category and hierarchy 
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

PARTICULARS 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
Financial assets 
Equity instruments -                                                              9.35 -                          -                   9.35 -                     
Security Deposit -                                                              -                        3.72                        -                   -                           3.87                    
Trade receivables -                                                              -                        277.88                     -                   -                           308.68                
Cash and cash equivalents -                                                              -                        2.35                        -                   -                           19.81                  
Loans -                                                              -                        0.24                        -                   -                           0.24                    

Total -                                                              9.35                      284.19                    -                  9.35                         332.60                

Financial assets  and liabilities measured at fair value  - recurring fair value  measurements

PARTICULARS 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

As at 
31st  March, 2023

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

These assumptions  were developed  by management  with the assistance  of independent  actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic 
markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience

(Rs. in Lacs)

0.00
0.00

Current Liability (*Expected payout in next year as per schedule III of the companies Act 2013):

0.00

As at 
31st  March, 2023

As at: 31-03-2023
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Financial liabilities
Borrowings -                                                              -                            572.27 -                   -                               572.27
Security deposit -                                                              -                            10.28 -                   -                               10.28
Current Borrowings -                                                              -                            4060.73 -                   -                               4060.73
Trade payable -                                                              -                            13.62 -                   -                               14.31
Cheque issued but not presented for payment -                                                              -                            0.00 -                   -                               0.00
Current Maturities -                                                              -                            0.00 -                   -                               0.00

Total -                                                              -                            4656.90 -                  -                              4657.59

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

PARTICULARS 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   
Financial assets
Equity  instruments 0.47 -                        8.88 0.47 -                           8.88

Total 0.47                                                         -                        8.88                        0.47             -                           8.88                   

Financial assets  and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which  fair values  are disclosed

PARTICULARS 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   
Financial assets
Security Deposit -                                                              -                            3.72 -                   -                               3.87
Trade Recievables -                                                              -                            277.88 -                   -                               308.68
Cash and cash equivalents -                                                              -                            2.35 -                   -                               19.81
Loans -                                                              -                            0.24 -                   -                               0.24

Total -                                                              -                            284.19 -                   -                               332.60

PARTICULARS 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   
Financial liabilities
Borrowings -                                                              -                            572.27 -                   -                               572.27
Security deposit -                                                              -                            10.28 -                   -                               10.28
Current Borrowings -                                                              -                            4060.73 -                   -                               4060.73
Trade payable -                                                              -                            13.62 -                   -                               14.31
Expenses Payable -                                                              -                            39.78 -                   -                               24.24
Cheque issued but not presented for payment -                                                              -                            0.00 -                   -                               0.00
Current Maturities -                                                              -                            0.00 -                   -                               0.00

Total -                                                              -                            4696.68 -                   -                               4681.83

39 Financial risk management objectives and policies:

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the 
closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is inlcuded in Level 2

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset 
included in level 3

As at 
31st  March, 2023

The Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian accounting standards. (Ind AS 
107) An explanation of each level follows under the table. 

As at 
31st  March, 2023

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2023

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to short term nature. Security deposits  are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair 
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.  The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowings rate. They are classsified as 
level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.  For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 

53



(B)Credit risk

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk: –

PARTICULARS 

Low credit risk on reporting date
Cash and cash equivalents 2.35                                                         19.81                        
Trade receivables 277.88                                                      308.68                      
Investments 9.35 9.35
Security Deposit 3.72                                                         3.87                          
Loans(current) 0.24                                                         0.24                          

Moderate credit risk -                                                           -                           
High credit risk -                                                           -                           

Cash & cash equivalents and bank deposits

Trade receivables

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables

PARTICULARS 

Ageing
Not due
0-180 days -                                                          -                           
more than 180 days 277.87 308.68                      

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2022

b) Foreign currency risks
The company has no foreign exchange exposure hence, there is currency risk involved.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade 
receivables) and from its financing activites, including loans to related parties, deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.
Credit risk management
The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of 'financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following 
credit ratings to each class of financial assets based 'on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
(i) Low credit risk on reporting date
(ii) Moderate credit risk
(iii) High credit risk

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

The company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of debtors through internal system that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated amounts. Further there has never 
been bad debts in the company since its inception,

As at 
31st  March, 2023

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2023

(Rs. in Lacs)

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The 
Company's financial assets include investment, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The company's senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that 
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk 
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

(A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk & other price risks. 

a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the Company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. As the accounts of the company has been classified as sub standard  quantam of 
risk associated cannot be acertained.
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(C) Liquidity risk

40 Capital Management 

 

PARTICULARS 

Borrowings
Trade payables
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

41 Additional Regulatory Information : 
(a) Ratio

Numerator (Rs in 
Lacs) 

Denominator(Rs 
in Lacs) Ratio

Numerator (Rs in 
Lacs) Ratio

Current ratio (in times) Current Assets / Current Liabilities 411.48                    4,117.05                  0.10              2,447.85                    0.60                    0.21             
Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt / Shareholder's Equity 4,650.45                 495.00                  9.39              4,633.00                    9.36                    0.00             

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times)
Earnings available for debt service / Debt 
Service -848.87 -                         -               -730.26                     -                      -              

Return on Equity Ratio (in %)

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year less 
Preference Dividend (if any) /Average 
Shareholder's Equity -1,011.87                495.00                   -2.04             -923.84                     2.21                    -1.87           

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times)
Revenue from Operations/ Average 
Inventory -                         447.49                   -               93.28                        0.09                    4.26             

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (in times)
Revenue from Operations / Average 
Trade Receivables -                         293.27                   -               93.28                        0.22                    0.87             

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (in times)
Net Credit Purchases/ Average Trade 
Payables -                         13.96                     -               -                            -                      -              

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times)
Revenue from Operations/ Working 
Capital -                         -3,278.30              -               93.28                        -0.06                   8.13             

Net Profit Ratio (in %)
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the Period 
/Revenue from Operations -1,006.52                -                          -               -923.84                     -9.90                   -0.64           

Return on Capital Employed (in %)
Earnings before Interest and Tax/ Capital 
Employed -1,011.87                -880.60                  1.15              -931.34                     2.73                    -0.78           

Return on Investment (in %)
Income Generated from Investments/ 
Average funds invested -                         9.35                       -               -                            -                      -              

42 The Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 has been amended in respect of certain regrouping/disclosures vide notification dated 24th March, 2021 which are applicable w.e.f 1st April 2021, the figures have been presented in the above financial statement after considering the said amendments. 

As per our separate report of even date attached
For KR AGGARWAL AND 
ASSOCIATES, Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants (Kapil Kumar Jain) (Suman Jain)
FRN: 030088N Director

Sd/- DIN: 00755228 DIN: 07841463
CA Vivek Aneja
Partner Sd/- Sd/-
M. No. 544757 (Komal Bhalla) (Ajit Kumar Jha)

Company Secretary) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ludhiana
Dated : 26.05.2023

4633.00
13.62
2.35

4644.27

4633.00
14.31

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 
31st  March, 2023

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.  The Company monitors capital using a 
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

As the accounts of the company has been classified as sub standard , quantam of risk associated cannot be acertained.

As at 
31st  March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

5122.50
90.34%

4627.50
495.00

19.81

Chairman & Managing Director

31 March,2023 31 March,2022

Variance %FormulaParticulars

495.00
5139.27
90.37%
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Regd. Off.: G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141 120(Punjab), India, 
CIN: L27109PB1980PLC004327 Tel.:+91-161-2511413, Fax: +91-161-2511414, 

E-mail: fin.ho@vallabhgroup.com, website: www.vallabhsteelsltd.in 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 43rd Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, the 28th 
day of September, 2023 at 10.00 a.m. at Registered Office of the Company at G.T. Road, Village Pawa, 
Sahnewal, Ludhiana. 

 
Name of the member(s):                                       Registered Address: 
D.P. ID*:                                                                           Folio No. :        
Client ID*:                                                                       No. of Share(s) held: 

 
Sr. No. Resolution I/We assent 

to the 
Resolution 

I/We dissent 
to the 

Resolution 
For** Against** 

Ordinary Business: 

1. 
 

To receive, consider and adopt Balance Sheet and 
Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023.  

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain, 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment as Director of the Company. 

  

Special Business: 
3. To consider and approve the appointment of the 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24. 

  

 
(SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER/PROXYHOLDER)__________________________________ 
Notes:  
(i)  Members/Proxy holders are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed for admission to 
the meeting hall. 
(ii) Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report. 
 
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 
** Please tick anyone. 
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Regd. Off.: G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141 120(Punjab), India, 
CIN: L27109PB1980PLC004327 Tel.:+91-161-2511413, Fax: +91-161-2511414, 

E-mail: fin.ho@vallabhgroup.com, website: www.vallabhsteelsltd.in 
 

Form No. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules 2014) 

 
Name of the member(s):                                                          Registerd Address: 
D.P. ID*:                                                                                 Folio No. :        
Client ID*:                                                                              No. of Share(s) held: 

 
I/We, being the member/members of VALLABH STEELS LIMITED, hereby appoint:  

 
1. Name____________________________       2. Name______________________________    3. Name_________________________________ 
    Address_________________________           Address____________________________        Address_______________________________ 
    E-mail id________________________           E-mail id__________________________         E-mail id______________________________ 
   Signature__________or failing him/her Signature_________or failing him/her Signature______________________________ 

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Thursday, the 28th Day of September, 2023 at 10:00 A.M at the registered office of the 
company situated at G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141 120(Punjab), India and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 
Sr. No. Resolution I/We assent to 

the Resolution 
I/We dissent to 
the Resolution 

For** Against** 
Ordinary Business: 

1. 
 

To receive, consider and adopt Balance Sheet and Audited 
Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.  

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kapil Kumar Jain, who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment as Director of the Company. 

  

Special Business: 
3. To consider and approve the appointment of the Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 
  

 
 

 
Signed  this ____ day of September, 2023.                     Signature ___________________  
Notes:  
(i)  A Member entitled to attend & vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend & vote on poll 

instead of himself/herself. 
(ii) The proxy form duly signed across the revenue stamp of Re. 1/- should reach the Company's Regd. Office at 

least 48 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting. 
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 
** Please tick anyone. 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

57



VENUE OF 43RD AGM OF 
VALLABH STEELS LIMITED 

AT REGISTERED OFFICE AT 

G.T. Road, Village Pawa, Sahnewal, Ludhiana-141120 
10:00 A.M., 28/09/2023 
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